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There	
  are	
  only	
  two	
  Lustron	
  houses	
  standing	
  in	
  Bergen	
  County	
  today:	
  

the	
  	
  Harold	
  Hess	
  Lustron	
  house	
  in	
  Closter	
  and	
  the	
  William	
  Wittmer	
  

Lustron	
  house	
  in	
  Alpine.	
  	
  The	
  Borough	
  of	
  Alpine	
  does	
  not	
  have	
  a	
  

historic	
  preservation	
  ordinance,	
  so	
  its	
  Lustron	
  house	
  could	
  be	
  

demolished	
  or	
  altered	
  at	
  any	
  time	
  without	
  any	
  oversight.	
  	
  There	
  are	
  

only	
  eleven	
  Lustron	
  houses	
  still	
  standing	
  in	
  the	
  entire	
  state	
  of	
  New	
  

Jersey.	
  

	
  

DESCRIPTION:	
  	
  	
   	
  

	
   The	
  Harold	
  Hess	
  Lustron	
  House	
  is	
  a	
  two-­‐bedroom,	
  one	
  bathroom	
  

“Westchester	
  Deluxe”	
  model	
  Lustron	
  house	
  with	
  an	
  attached	
  breezeway	
  connecting	
  

to	
  a	
  one-­‐car	
  garage.	
  	
  The	
  one-­‐story	
  house	
  measures	
  1,085	
  square	
  feet	
  and	
  is	
  

constructed	
  entirely	
  of	
  prefabricated	
  porcelain	
  enameled	
  steel	
  panels.	
  	
  The	
  house	
  

rests	
  on	
  a	
  concrete	
  slab	
  foundation.	
  	
  The	
  rectangular	
  yellow	
  enameled	
  steel	
  house	
  

has	
  a	
  dark	
  gray	
  tile	
  roof.	
  	
  	
  

	
  

	
   The	
  house	
  is	
  a	
  one-­‐story,	
  side-­‐gabled,	
  ranch	
  type	
  home.	
  	
  The	
  exterior	
  of	
  the	
  

house	
  has	
  very	
  little	
  ornamentation.	
  	
  The	
  exterior	
  yellow	
  steel	
  panels,	
  which	
  each	
  

measure	
  2’	
  X	
  2’,	
  along	
  with	
  the	
  enameled	
  steel	
  chimney	
  panels,	
  living	
  room	
  bay	
  

window	
  and	
  decorative	
  metal	
  spiral	
  porch	
  roof	
  support,	
  all	
  give	
  this	
  house	
  its	
  

distinct	
  appearance.	
  	
  The	
  breezeway	
  has	
  been	
  enclosed	
  with	
  brick	
  and	
  wood	
  and	
  

has	
  aluminum	
  storm	
  windows.	
  	
  The	
  one-­‐car	
  garage	
  measures	
  15’	
  X	
  21’	
  and	
  is	
  of	
  

traditionally	
  framed	
  balloon	
  construction.	
  	
  It	
  is	
  covered	
  in	
  matching	
  yellow	
  2’	
  X	
  2’	
  

steel	
  panels	
  and	
  has	
  the	
  same	
  dark	
  gray	
  roof	
  tiles	
  as	
  the	
  house.	
  	
  

	
  	
  

	
   The	
  Harold	
  Hess	
  Lustron	
  house	
  is	
  sited	
  diagonally	
  on	
  a	
  corner	
  lot	
  with	
  the	
  

main	
  façade	
  facing	
  the	
  intersection	
  of	
  Legion	
  Place	
  and	
  Durie	
  Avenue.	
  	
  The	
  main	
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façade	
  is	
  in	
  line	
  with	
  the	
  breezeway	
  and	
  garage.	
  	
  The	
  side	
  facing	
  Durie	
  Avenue	
  has	
  

the	
  projecting	
  bay	
  window.	
  

	
  

	
   Interior	
  features	
  include	
  built-­‐in	
  wall	
  furniture	
  and	
  closet	
  space;	
  	
  between	
  

the	
  dining	
  room	
  area	
  and	
  kitchen	
  is	
  a	
  buffet	
  with	
  shelves	
  and	
  drawers	
  on	
  one	
  side	
  

and	
  kitchen	
  cabinets	
  with	
  shelves	
  and	
  drawers	
  on	
  the	
  other	
  side.	
  	
  The	
  built-­‐in	
  steel	
  

unit	
  between	
  the	
  living	
  room	
  and	
  master	
  bedroom	
  contains	
  a	
  mirrored	
  bookcase	
  on	
  

one	
  side	
  and	
  a	
  built-­‐in	
  mirrored	
  vanity	
  and	
  counter	
  top	
  with	
  drawers	
  and	
  closet	
  

doors	
  on	
  the	
  other	
  side.	
  	
  Exterior	
  and	
  interior	
  wall	
  corners	
  are	
  rounded	
  and	
  

contribute	
  to	
  the	
  clean,	
  streamlined	
  look	
  of	
  the	
  Lustron	
  home.	
  	
  All	
  interior	
  walls	
  are	
  

covered	
  with	
  porcelain	
  enameled	
  steel	
  panels	
  measuring	
  2’	
  X	
  8’.	
  	
  The	
  panels	
  are	
  

vertically	
  scored	
  to	
  give	
  a	
  paneled	
  appearance.	
  	
  The	
  kitchen	
  and	
  bathroom	
  panels	
  

are	
  yellow	
  and	
  all	
  of	
  the	
  other	
  wall	
  panels	
  are	
  a	
  light	
  gray	
  color.	
  	
  Ceiling	
  panels	
  

throughout	
  measure	
  4’	
  X	
  4’	
  and	
  are	
  white.	
  	
  All	
  cabinets	
  in	
  the	
  kitchen,	
  bedrooms	
  and	
  

bathroom	
  are	
  light	
  gray.	
  	
  The	
  two	
  bedrooms	
  and	
  bathroom	
  all	
  have	
  their	
  original	
  

steel	
  porcelain-­‐enameled	
  flush	
  gray	
  pocket	
  doors	
  which	
  slide	
  on	
  overhead	
  tracks.	
  	
  

All	
  closet	
  and	
  storage	
  doors	
  are	
  of	
  the	
  bypass	
  sliding	
  type.	
  	
  The	
  bathroom	
  retains	
  its	
  

original	
  stamped	
  steel	
  bathtub	
  measuring	
  5.5	
  feet	
  in	
  length.	
  	
  All	
  of	
  the	
  kitchen	
  

cabinets	
  and	
  hardware	
  are	
  original.	
  	
  	
  

	
   	
  

HISTORY:	
  	
  	
  

	
   The	
  Harold	
  Hess	
  Lustron	
  House	
  was	
  built	
  in	
  1950	
  and	
  was	
  one	
  of	
  2,498	
  

Lustrons	
  manufactured	
  and	
  sold	
  in	
  the	
  United	
  States	
  by	
  the	
  Lustron	
  Corporation	
  

between	
  1948	
  and	
  1950.	
  	
  	
  

 At	
  the	
  close	
  of	
  World	
  War	
  II,	
  the	
  United	
  States	
  faced	
  the	
  most	
  severe	
  housing	
  

shortage	
  in	
  its	
  history.	
  	
  In	
  an	
  effort	
  to	
  build	
  as	
  much	
  as	
  possible	
  and	
  as	
  fast	
  as	
  

possible,	
  Congress	
  voted	
  to	
  fund	
  research	
  into	
  prefabricated	
  housing,	
  and	
  firms	
  

specializing	
  in	
  prefabricated	
  houses	
  were	
  rewarded	
  with	
  access	
  to	
  natural	
  resources	
  

and	
  rationed	
  steel-­‐making	
  materials.	
  	
  	
  Porcelain	
  enamel	
  became	
  popular	
  for	
  style	
  as	
  

well	
  as	
  substance.	
  It	
  perfectly	
  suited	
  the	
  design	
  sensibilities	
  of	
  the	
  era,	
  giving	
  a	
  sleek,	
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streamlined	
  look	
  to	
  gas	
  stations,	
  hamburger	
  stands	
  (most	
  famously	
  White	
  Castles),	
  

and	
  other	
  utilitarian	
  structures.	
  

	
   A	
  leading	
  manufacturer	
  of	
  the	
  coated	
  panels	
  was	
  the	
  Porcelain	
  Products	
  

Company,	
  a	
  subsidiary	
  of	
  the	
  Chicago	
  Vitreous	
  Enamel	
  Products	
  Company.	
  Founded	
  

in	
  1919,	
  “Chicago	
  Vit”	
  contributed	
  to	
  World	
  War	
  II	
  by	
  producing	
  tank	
  armor	
  for	
  

turrets	
  and	
  commander	
  domes.	
  The	
  company	
  hired	
  Carl	
  Strandlund,	
  a	
  Swedish-­‐born	
  

engineer,	
  inventor,	
  and	
  entrepreneur,	
  to	
  retool	
  and	
  run	
  the	
  plant	
  for	
  the	
  war	
  effort.	
  

His	
  innovations	
  dramatically	
  sped	
  up	
  production,	
  raising	
  the	
  national	
  profile	
  of	
  the	
  

company	
  and	
  himself.	
  	
  He	
  was	
  soon	
  promoted	
  to	
  executive	
  vice	
  president	
  and	
  

general	
  manager.	
  	
  Strandlund	
  received	
  a	
  patent	
  for	
  his	
  innovation,	
  the	
  porcelain	
  

steel	
  panel.	
  

	
   Carl	
  Strandlund	
  went	
  on	
  to	
  form	
  the	
  Lustron	
  Corporation.	
  	
  Originally	
  

requesting	
  steel	
  to	
  produce	
  all-­‐steel	
  gas	
  stations	
  for	
  the	
  Standard	
  Oil	
  Company,	
  

Strandlund	
  changed	
  his	
  plan	
  and	
  proposed	
  building	
  housing	
  units,	
  in	
  order	
  to	
  gain	
  

government	
  approval.	
  	
  The	
  design	
  was	
  created	
  by	
  Illinois	
  architects	
  Roy	
  Blass	
  and	
  

Morris	
  Beckman.	
  	
  Based	
  on	
  an	
  estimate	
  that	
  one	
  hundred	
  houses	
  could	
  be	
  produced	
  

in	
  nine	
  months	
  at	
  a	
  retail	
  price	
  of	
  $7,000.00	
  each,	
  the	
  Reconstruction	
  Finance	
  

Corporation	
  rewarded	
  a	
  $12.5	
  million	
  dollar	
  loan	
  for	
  production.	
  	
  The	
  first	
  Lustron	
  

factory	
  was	
  located	
  in	
  a	
  Curtis-­‐Wright	
  facility	
  near	
  Columbus,	
  Ohio.	
  	
  It	
  later	
  moved	
  

to	
  the	
  Tucker	
  Automobile	
  Plant	
  in	
  Columbus,	
  Ohio.	
  	
  In	
  order	
  to	
  make	
  manufacturing	
  

more	
  efficient,	
  Strandlund	
  based	
  production	
  on	
  the	
  process	
  of	
  the	
  automobile	
  

assembly	
  line.	
  	
  	
  

	
  

	
   The	
  Lustron	
  Corporation	
  ultimately	
  offered	
  eight	
  models	
  commercially,	
  

which	
  varied	
  in	
  number	
  of	
  bedrooms	
  (two	
  or	
  three),	
  size,	
  and	
  amenities.	
  	
  Color	
  

options	
  for	
  the	
  exterior	
  panels	
  were	
  “surf	
  blue,”	
  “maize	
  yellow,”	
  “desert	
  tan,”	
  or	
  

“dove	
  gray.”	
  Lustron	
  accessories	
  included	
  screen	
  doors,	
  a	
  storm-­‐door	
  insert,	
  a	
  

combination	
  storm-­‐screen	
  door,	
  and	
  storm	
  windows,	
  all	
  in	
  aluminum;	
  steel	
  venetian	
  

blinds	
  in	
  ivory;	
  a	
  picture	
  hanger	
  kit;	
  and	
  an	
  attic	
  fan.	
  The	
  company	
  encouraged	
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homeowners	
  to	
  personalize	
  their	
  homes	
  by	
  screening	
  in	
  porches	
  and	
  adding	
  

breezeways.	
  By	
  1949,	
  Lustron	
  was	
  also	
  selling	
  garage	
  panel	
  packages.	
  Unlike	
  the	
  

house	
  panels,	
  which	
  were	
  part	
  of	
  a	
  self-­‐supporting	
  structure,	
  the	
  garage	
  panels	
  had	
  

to	
  be	
  attached	
  to	
  a	
  traditional	
  wood-­‐frame	
  structure.	
  

	
  

	
   The	
  Lustron	
  Corporation	
  operated	
  from	
  1946	
  to	
  1950.	
  	
  	
  Production	
  began	
  in	
  

1948,	
  but	
  by	
  1950,	
  	
  production	
  problems	
  and	
  a	
  corruption	
  scandal	
  brought	
  the	
  

company	
  to	
  a	
  halt.	
  	
  The	
  factory	
  was	
  closed	
  and	
  the	
  equipment	
  sold	
  or	
  scrapped.	
  	
  

Lustron	
  filed	
  for	
  bankruptcy.	
  	
  All	
  in	
  all,	
  only	
  about	
  2,680	
  of	
  these	
  unique	
  homes	
  

were	
  built.	
  	
  	
  Sadly,	
  it	
  is	
  estimated	
  that	
  only	
  1,500	
  of	
  these	
  houses	
  survive	
  today.	
  	
  	
  

Each	
  year,	
  dozens	
  are	
  lost	
  to	
  demolition,	
  neglect,	
  and	
  unsympathetic	
  changes	
  and	
  

alterations.	
  

	
  

	
   In	
  New	
  Jersey,	
  only	
  sixteen	
  Lustron	
  houses	
  were	
  sold,	
  and	
  only	
  three	
  were	
  

known	
  to	
  have	
  existed	
  in	
  Bergen	
  County.	
  	
  	
  In	
  Closter,	
  there	
  were	
  two	
  Lustron	
  homes,	
  

but	
  the	
  one	
  formerly	
  situated	
  at	
  22	
  Division	
  Street	
  was	
  demolished	
  in	
  1998,	
  leaving	
  

the	
  Harold	
  Hess	
  Lustron	
  as	
  the	
  only	
  remaining	
  Lustron	
  in	
  the	
  Borough.	
  	
  	
  The	
  only	
  

other	
  remaining	
  Lustron	
  house	
  in	
  Bergen	
  County	
  is	
  in	
  the	
  Borough	
  of	
  Alpine,	
  at	
  19	
  

DuBois	
  Avenue.	
  	
  There	
  are	
  only	
  eleven	
  Lustrons	
  still	
  standing	
  in	
  the	
  entire	
  state.	
  

	
  

THE	
  HESS	
  FAMILY	
  HOME:	
  	
  	
  

	
   In	
  1949,	
  Mr.	
  Harold	
  Hess,	
  a	
  returning	
  World	
  War	
  II	
  veteran	
  who	
  was	
  	
  

recently	
  married,	
  saw	
  a	
  model	
  of	
  a	
  Lustron	
  house	
  at	
  the	
  Palisades	
  Amusement	
  Park	
  

in	
  Fort	
  Lee,	
  New	
  Jersey.	
  	
  He	
  purchased	
  the	
  “Westchester	
  Deluxe”	
  model	
  home	
  from	
  

Art	
  Padula,	
  owner	
  of	
  the	
  Better	
  Living	
  Homes	
  Lustron	
  franchise	
  in	
  Maplewood,	
  New	
  

Jersey,	
  in	
  1950.	
  	
  Mr.	
  Hess,	
  along	
  with	
  engineer	
  Jim	
  Mortimer,	
  faced	
  six	
  months	
  of	
  

planning	
  and	
  zoning	
  board	
  meetings	
  in	
  Fort	
  Lee,	
  New	
  Jersey,	
  where	
  Mr.	
  Hess	
  had	
  

originally	
  planned	
  to	
  situate	
  his	
  house.	
  	
  Hess	
  failed	
  to	
  obtain	
  the	
  necessary	
  building	
  

permits	
  in	
  Fort	
  Lee,	
  so	
  he	
  looked	
  to	
  the	
  northeast	
  sections	
  of	
  Bergen	
  County,	
  where	
  

less	
  development	
  and	
  more	
  relaxed	
  building	
  codes	
  provided	
  better	
  opportunity	
  for	
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him.	
  	
  Hess	
  built	
  his	
  home	
  at	
  the	
  corner	
  of	
  Durie	
  Avenue	
  and	
  Legion	
  Place	
  in	
  Closter.	
  

He	
  lived	
  there	
  and	
  raised	
  a	
  family,	
  and	
  remained	
  the	
  owner	
  until	
  2000.	
  	
  

	
  
HISTORIC	
  DESIGNATION	
  RATIONALE:	
   	
  

	
   The	
  Closter	
  Master	
  Plan,	
  Historic	
  Element,	
  adopted	
  on	
  April	
  6,	
  2011,	
  states:	
  

“As	
  Closter	
  faces	
  the	
  challenges	
  of	
  a	
  complex	
  21st	
  century,	
  the	
  town’s	
  historic	
  fabric	
  

and	
  resources	
  will	
  likely	
  come	
  under	
  strong	
  pressures	
  for	
  change.	
  	
  The	
  stories	
  

behind	
  these	
  structures	
  combine	
  to	
  form	
  our	
  collective	
  history,	
  and	
  retaining	
  them	
  

keeps	
  their	
  stories	
  accessible,	
  reminding	
  us	
  how	
  we	
  got	
  here.	
  .	
  .	
  Preservation	
  of	
  

historic	
  sites	
  and	
  districts	
  serves	
  to	
  promote	
  the	
  aesthetic,	
  environmental,	
  cultural	
  

and	
  economic	
  values	
  within	
  the	
  Borough	
  and	
  retains	
  the	
  authentic	
  character	
  of	
  

place.”	
  	
  

	
   The	
  Hess	
  Lustron	
  house	
  was	
  added	
  to	
  the	
  National	
  Register	
  of	
  Historic	
  Places	
  

and	
  the	
  New	
  Jersey	
  Register	
  of	
  Historic	
  Places	
  in	
  2000.	
  	
  	
  There	
  are	
  only	
  two	
  Lustron	
  

houses	
  standing	
  in	
  Bergen	
  County	
  in	
  2013,	
  the	
  	
  Harold	
  Hess	
  Lustron	
  house	
  in	
  

Closter	
  and	
  the	
  William	
  Wittmer	
  Lustron	
  house	
  in	
  Alpine.	
  	
  There	
  are	
  only	
  eleven	
  

Lustron	
  houses	
  still	
  extant	
  in	
  the	
  entire	
  state	
  of	
  New	
  Jersey.	
  

	
   The	
  Closter	
  Planning	
  Board,	
  in	
  its	
  resolution	
  of	
  DENIAL	
  for	
  subdivision	
  of	
  the	
  

property,	
  noted	
  that	
  “	
  The	
  board	
  heard	
  testimony	
  to	
  the	
  effect	
  and	
  took	
  judicial	
  

notice	
  of	
  the	
  fact	
  that	
  the	
  Hess	
  Lustron	
  house	
  is	
  considered	
  to	
  be	
  of	
  historical	
  

significance,”	
  and	
  that	
  “The	
  Board	
  was	
  unconvinced	
  that	
  the	
  application	
  advanced	
  

the	
  purposes	
  of	
  the	
  Municipal	
  Land	
  Use	
  Act	
  by	
  preserving	
  a	
  historical	
  site	
  	
  .	
  .	
  .	
  The	
  

Applicant	
  proposed	
  to	
  remove	
  the	
  Hess	
  Lustron	
  house	
  from	
  the	
  site	
  and	
  therefore,	
  it	
  

was	
  not	
  in	
  any	
  sense	
  being	
  preserved	
  on	
  site.”	
  	
  	
  (Resolution,	
  page	
  2,	
  3)	
  

	
   The	
  Harold	
  Hess	
  Lustron	
  house	
  meets	
  Closter’s	
   local	
  designation	
  criteria	
  as	
  

established	
  in	
  Closter	
  Borough	
  Code	
  Chapter	
  35,	
  Sections	
  54	
  (A)	
  subsections	
  1	
  and	
  

4.	
  	
  

	
   Section	
  54(A)(1)	
  recognizes	
  the	
  significance	
  of	
  buildings	
  “associated	
  with	
  

events	
  that	
  have	
  made	
  a	
  significant	
  contribution	
  to	
  the	
  Borough	
  of	
  Closter	
  by	
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reflecting	
  or	
  exemplifying	
  the	
  broad	
  cultural,	
  political,	
  economic,	
  or	
  social	
  history	
  of	
  

the	
  nation,	
  state,	
  or	
  community.”	
  	
  	
  The	
  production	
  of	
  the	
  Lustron	
  house	
  is	
  significant	
  

in	
  that	
  it	
  contributes	
  to	
  the	
  broad	
  patterns	
  of	
  the	
  suburban	
  housing	
  development	
  in	
  

20th	
  Century	
  American	
  history	
  and	
  is	
  especially	
  important	
  for	
  its	
  association	
  with	
  

the	
  post	
  World	
  War	
  II	
  prefabrication	
  efforts	
  of	
  the	
  U.S.	
  government	
  and	
  industry	
  and	
  

with	
  the	
  technological	
  innovations	
  to	
  accommodate	
  the	
  increased	
  housing	
  needs	
  of	
  

a	
  post-­‐war	
  nation.	
  	
  	
  	
  

	
  

	
   	
   Section	
  54(A)(4)	
  recognizes	
  the	
  importance	
  of	
  buildings	
  “That	
  

embody	
  distinctive	
  characteristics	
  of	
  a	
  type,	
  period,	
  or	
  method	
  of	
  construction;	
  that	
  

represent	
  the	
  work	
  of	
  a	
  master;	
  that	
  possess	
  high	
  artistic	
  values;	
  or	
  that	
  represent	
  a	
  

significant	
  distinguishable	
  entity	
  whose	
  components	
  may	
  lack	
  individual	
  

distinction.”	
  	
  Since	
  the	
  Lustron	
  house	
  is	
  of	
  a	
  highly	
  innovative	
  and	
  unique	
  style,	
  it	
  

qualifies	
  for	
  local	
  historic	
  designation	
  under	
  this	
  category.	
  	
  The	
  Hess	
  Lustron	
  retains	
  

a	
  high	
  degree	
  of	
  architectural	
  integrity;	
  	
  as	
  noted,	
  most	
  of	
  its	
  original	
  features	
  are	
  

still	
  intact.	
  	
  The	
  exterior	
  of	
  the	
  building	
  has	
  seen	
  changes	
  to	
  the	
  breezeway	
  (it	
  was	
  

enclosed),	
  and	
  only	
  minor	
  changes	
  have	
  been	
  made	
  to	
  the	
  interior.	
  	
  	
  As	
  stated	
  above,	
  

the	
  Lustron	
  home	
  has	
  become	
  increasingly	
  rare,	
  as	
  more	
  are	
  demolished	
  every	
  year,	
  

and	
  since	
  so	
  few	
  were	
  built	
  in	
  the	
  post-­‐World	
  War	
  II	
  era.	
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APPENDICES:	
  	
  	
  
I.	
  	
  MAP	
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Location	
  of	
  Harold	
  Hess	
  Lustron	
  House,	
  421	
  Durie	
  Avenue,	
  Closter,	
  NJ,	
  07624	
  
	
  
	
  
II.	
  	
  HISTORICAL	
  PROMOTIONAL	
  MATERIALS	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  

	
  
	
  
Brochure	
  regarding	
  the	
  Lustron,	
  Westchester	
  model	
  –	
  screen	
  shot	
  taken	
  from	
  
www.lustronpreservation.org	
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Pages	
  from	
  Brochure:	
  “The	
  Lustron	
  Home”	
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III.	
  	
  PHOTOS	
  
	
  	
  

	
  
The	
  Lustron	
  Truck	
  at	
  the	
  Harold	
  Hess	
  property	
  1950	
  –	
  this	
  truck	
  could	
  carry	
  all	
  of	
  
the	
  components	
  for	
  building	
  the	
  house	
  
	
  

	
  
Process	
  of	
  construction,	
  1950	
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Framing	
  –	
  1950	
  
	
  

	
  
The	
  Hess	
  Family	
  standing	
  in	
  front	
  of	
  the	
  newly	
  completed	
  Lustron,	
  1950	
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Photo	
  courtesy	
  of	
  Closter	
  Motors	
  –	
  a	
  gift	
  to	
  them	
  from	
  Harold	
  Hess	
  –	
  early	
  photo	
  
Of	
  the	
  Harold	
  Hess	
  Lustron	
  House	
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The	
  three	
  preceding	
  photos	
  were	
  taken	
  of	
  the	
  Hess	
  Lustron	
  interior	
  prior	
  to	
  Mr.	
  
Hess’	
  sale	
  of	
  the	
  property,	
  ca.	
  2001	
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Suburbanite	
  2001	
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Text	
  of	
  Bergen	
  County	
  Historical	
  Society	
  marker	
  that	
  stands	
  in	
  front	
  of	
  the	
  Hess	
  
Lustron	
  House	
  in	
  Closter	
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Harold	
  Hess	
  Lustron	
  –Spring	
  2010	
  
	
  
	
  
	
  

	
  
January	
  2013	
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Richard	
  Schmidt	
  (owner)	
  and	
  Bobbie	
  Bouton	
  Goldberg,	
  historian,	
  in	
  front	
  of	
  exhibit	
  
about	
  the	
  Lustron.	
  	
  	
  Closter	
  Public	
  Library,	
  November	
  2011	
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IV.	
  	
  TESTIMONIALS	
  

	
  
	
  
	
  
Letter	
  urginG	
  designation	
  of	
  the	
  Hess	
  Lustron	
  house	
  from	
  the	
  National	
  Trust	
  for	
  
Historic	
  Preservation.	
  	
  The	
  Closter	
  Council	
  at	
  that	
  time	
  denied	
  historic	
  landmark	
  
status	
  to	
  the	
  house.	
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Page	
  two	
  of	
  the	
  National	
  Trust	
  letter.	
  	
  Its	
  urgency	
  is	
  even	
  more	
  underscored	
  nine	
  
years	
  later.	
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V.	
  	
   PLANNING	
  BOARD	
  RESOLUTION	
  OF	
  DENIAL	
  FOR	
  SUBDIVISION	
  OF	
  
	
   PROPERTY	
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